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INTRODUCTION

I. Plaintiffs Michael Friedman and Howard R. Udell are former senior
exccutives at Purdue Pharma L.P. (“Purdue Pharma” or “the Company™). In this action,
plaintiffs seek: (i) a declaratory judgment declaring that a final order issued by the
Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services (“Secretary” and “HHS”)
summarily excluding plaintiffs from participation in federal health care programs for
twelve (12) years is contrary to law, arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, and
not supported by substantial evidence, in violation of the Administrative Procedure Act,
5 U.8.C. § 706 (“APA™); and (ii) an order vacating and enjoining the exclusions or,
alternatively, remanding for further administrative review.

2. The Social Security Act sets forth the circumstances in which the
Secretary may exclude individuéls convicted of crimes from participating in federal
health care programs. 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7. The exclusions at issue here were based
solely on each plaintiff’s plea to a no-fault, strict liability misdemeanor under the federal
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (“FDCA™), 21 U.S.C. §§ 331(a), 333(a)(1). The
misdemeanor charge was based on the FDCA’s “responsible corporate officer” doctrine,
an anomaly in the criminal Taw that 'permiﬁéd plai ntiffs to be charged and convicted
solely because of their status as senior executives of The Purdue Frederick Corﬁpanyj Ine.
(“Purdue Frederick” or “Purdue”) at a time When some Purdue sales personmel made
certain misstatements about OxyContin® Tablets, an opioid analgesic. As acknowledged
by the pfosecut‘ors who brought those charges — and by the court that accepted their
pleas — the record of convictién contains no accusation and no evidénce that Messrs.

Friedman or Udell themselves committed any unlawful act or that they were aware of any
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unlawful act committed by other Purdue employees. This is the first time exclusion has
ever been imposed based on the “responsible co‘rpora.te officer” misdemeanor.

3. The grounds for granting the relief sought in this complaint can be
summarized as follows:

A, ‘The plaintiffs’ s%fict liability misdemeanor pleas are not excludable

offenses undef either of the statutory pfovisions on which the Secrétary has reli_ed, 42
U.8.C. § 1320a-7(b)(1) and (b)(3). Section (b)(1) permits the Secretary to exclude
individuals co’_m.ficted of a misdemeanor “relating to fraud . . . or other ﬁnancial'
misconduct,” and Section 1128(b)(3) permits exclusion when a person has committed a
misdemeancr “relating to the unlawful manufacture, distribution, prescription or
dispensing of a controlled substance.” 42 U.S.C. §§ 1 3:20a~7(b')(1), (b)(3). Neither
si_lbsection applies here because plaintiffs’ -réspbhsible corjsorate officer pleas related to
plaintiffs® status at Purdue, pot to their coiniﬁission of the fraud or c;)ntrolled substances
violations to which the statute refers.

“B. Therdefendants" decision to impose these 110n~fnar_1datory '
exclusions was'&'bitrary and capricious aﬁd an abuse of discretion because it does not
serve the remedial purposes of the exclusion statute, 1.e., barting unfrustworthy
individuals from pa:rticipéﬁng in federal héalth care programs and deterring wrongful
conduct. Plaintiffs have engaged in no misconduct demonstrating untrustworthiness; to
the 6ont1'afy; their pieas were not based on any misconduct by them at aﬁ but rather on
the illegal acts of others. The record shows that throughout their careéfé, each of the
plaintiffs has demolnStrated an ﬁnﬁé@éﬁﬁé 'commitm:ér}ft to -ck')n-ibaﬁn.g abﬁse and diversion .

of 'prescripﬁon drugs.
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C. The twelve-year peridd of thesé exclusions was an abuse of
discretion and not supported by substantial evidence for several reasons. First, if was
based on two aggravating circumstances tha’_c are not supported by substantial evidence.
Since plaintiffs were cha%ged base& on no misconduct at all, their pleas cannet l’jiaVG.
invo}ved misconduct éausing harn:a lto .federal health care programs or lasting more than
one year. ASt'sc(_)nd, in“relira-mce ona regulation purporting to- limit the .mit.igaﬁpg factors
th,;:;t can _Ee 'considered,_ the Secretary failed to consider a wgalth of mitige:tting . |
circumstances. - iﬁéclilding tﬂat plaiﬁtiffs’ éieas we:re.be;sed o'n no miscoﬁéiuét by them nor
even knowledge of misconduct, and that each had spent his career fighting abuse of
prescription medicines including pain relievers like Purdue’s OxyContin.

PARTIES

4. Plaintiff Michael Friedman is the former Chief Executive Qfficer of
Purdue Pharma and Purdue Fre(ierick and resides in Connecticut. On the date of this
complaint, Mr. Friedman is 60 years old.

5. Plaintiff Howard Udell is the former Executive Vice President and Chief
Legal Officer of Purdue Pharma and Purdue Frederick and resides in Connecticut. On
the date of thié complaint, Mr, Udell is 68 years old.

| 6. Défendant Kathleen Sebelius is the Secretary of HIIS, a federal

depaﬁmeht headqﬁartéred in Waéhingibn, D.C., and is sued in her official capacity only.

7. Daniel R Levinson is the Inspector General of HHS, with an office

located in Washington, D.C., and is sued in his official capacity only.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE
8. This Court has jurisdiction over this a;tion pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §-702 and
28 U.S.C, § 1331. The Cou_rt.has authority to i.ssue declaraiory and other relief in
accordance with 28 U.B.C. §§ 2201(a) aﬁd 2202.‘
9. | Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2) because a
substantial part of the events giving rise to tﬁé claims herein occul"l‘éd within this judicial
~ district and 42 U.S.C. § 405(g) Eecause f)lai,niiffs reside within this‘ jﬁdicial distriet.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. THE RECORD CONCERNING PLAINTIFEFS® MISDEMEANOR PLEAS

Purdue Frederick’s Plea

10. Purdue Frederick, an independent, associated entity of Purdue Pharma,
developed and originally m_arkefed OxyContin, an opioid analgesic approved by the Food
and Drug Administration (“FDA”) in 1995 to treat moderate to severe pain when a |
continuous, around-the-clock analgesic is needed for an extended period of time,

1. In or about 2002, the United States Attorney’s Office for the Western
DiAstric.t of Virginia commenced an investigation into the prorﬁotion and sale of
OxyCOntih. On May 10, 2007, Purdue Frederick pleaded guilty to a single felon;r count
of misbranding with intent to defraud in V;iolaﬁon of the FDCA, 21 U.S.C. §§ 331(a) and
333(5)(2); | |

12 The sole t‘actuai basis for Purdue Frederick’s felony -plea was set forth in
an Agreeci Statement rof Facts. That Agreed Statement of Facts stated, in substance, that
prior to Jﬁly 2001, celrtain Purdue sales employees -delviated from the FDA—a;:)provea Idbel
by describing OxyContin as less addictive, less subject to abuse and diversion, and less
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likely to cause withdrawal and tolerance than other immediate-release opioid
medications.

13;. The g:ovcrnment stated that it could notrestablish that the misbranding ‘
Caus:ed ‘émy halm to federal health éﬁré programs of their beneﬁciaries.r

| 14 The government stated that it could not establish a causal connection
between fhe misbranding statements and abuse and diversion of Oz-{yCOntin. The
sentencing Judge stated that courts consistently have found that despiteiexte.:nsive
discovery, civil plaintiffs have as a matter of law been unable to show that Purdue’s
actions caused their injuries,

15.  The amount of the payments made by Purdue or Purdue Pharma were not
calculated or defermined. based on any evidence of harm or financial loss to federél health
care programs or program beneficiaries resulting from the misbranding. There was no
such evidence, and the sentencing Judge declined to make any finding that the
misbranding caused any financial harm, and also declined to find that any health care
program, or any entity, or persbn was a victim of the misbranding. |

Plaintiffs’ Pleas

16.  During the relevant tiﬁe period referred to in the Agreed Statement of
f acts, Michael F riedmaﬁ was President and Chief Executive Officer (;f Purdue and
HOl\-Nal‘d Udell was Purdue’s Executive Vice President and Chief Legal Officer.

17. As pért of a glolbal reéolutioh of the investigation, plaintiffs, along with
Pur&ue’s Execufive Vicé Pfesident of Medical and Scientific Affairs and Execuﬁvgé Vice
President for Wﬁrldﬁide Research and Development, Dr. Paul Goldenheim, agreéd to

enter pleas to no-fault strict liability misdemeanor charges of misbranding based on the

6
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Agreed Statement of Facts. Under the law stated in United States v. Park, 421 1].5. 658
(1 975); lack of participation in the wrongdoing was no defense, nor was lack of
knowledge or reason to know. The only defense to the “responsible corporate officer”
misdemeanor charge was that plaintiffs were powerless to prevent the misconduct of
others in the first instance or to prémptly correct it once discovered, and that defense is
unavailable to senior executives like plaintiffs.

18.  Itis undisputed that the FDCA. misdemeanor provision does not require
proof of any intent, including fraudulent intent or intent to mislead. The prosecutors
stated to the District Court that the plaintiffs’ misdemeanor offense “requires no proof of
intent or actual knowledge of the violations by the Corporate Officials to establish their
guilt for the misdemeanor offense.” |

19 There is no evidence in the rAe-c-:ord thétt £he plairl-at-iffs acted with criminal
intent, including fraudulent intent or intent to mislead.

20. The government did not allege in the Agreed Statement of Facts or
otherwise state to the District Coﬁrt that the plaintiffs acted intentionally or with
fraudulent intent or intent to ﬁlislead.

21.  There is no evidence in the record that plaintiffs were made aware of
misconduct of otﬁcr co'rporate employees and failed to correct or rectify that misconduct.

22.  The government did not s"[ate to fhe District Court that the plaintiffs were
made aware of the misbranding By ény‘ petson or meané and failed to vém.'rect or rectify

that misbranding.

~J
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23..  There is no evidence in the record that the circumstances of the
" misbranding by other corporate employees were such that the plaintiffs sho-uld have
known Qf that misbranding.

24. The government did not state to the District Court that tﬂe circumstances
of thé misbranding by cher corporate employees were such that the plaintiffs should
have known of that misbranding. | |

The Exclusions

25.  On November 15, 2007, the Office-of Inspector General of HHS (the
“I(¥") sent each plaintiff a Notice of Intent to Exclude. In response, plaintiffs presented a
written submission to the IG detailing reasons that exclusion should not be imposed
iﬂcludiﬂg, but not limited to, their contentions that the plaintiffs’ 'm‘isdemeanor pleas were
not e}%cludable éffeﬁses, and- that their exclusion would constitute an abuse ﬂ(‘)f agency
discretion.

2. By notices dated Mareh 31, 2008, the IG informed each of the plaintiffs
that they ;‘%e being excluded from participation in any lcapacity in Medicﬁe, Meéi;:'atid,
and ail federéi health cére programs, as defined in section 1128B(f) of the Social Security
Act (Act), for a minirﬁﬁm périod of 20 years,” (emphasis in origipal). The notices also
stated that the ‘.‘action is being taken ﬁlnd-e;r secﬁoﬁs- 1128(b)(3) and 1128(b)(1} of the Act -
a;ld is effective 20 days from the date of ‘this léﬁér.;’ The notices relied lon eéch plaintiff’s
misdemeanor conviction as the ba:sis for exclusion, claiming that “[yJour cﬁnvicﬁon
reia%:ed o the introduction into intérs‘;até colm.merce lby the Purdue f‘l‘éderick Coméa;ﬁy,
Inc. (_]éurdﬁe) lof OxyCohtin, a Schedule II controlled substa;nce; that was ﬁlisbréhc]:ed in
vioiéﬁbﬁ of the Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act.” By potice identical to those for

8
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plaintiffs, the IG also informed Dr. Goldenheim that he was being excluded based on his
r(::‘sponsible corporate officer misdem@anor conviction. 7

27 Section (b)(1), 42 US.C. § 132Qa—7(b)( 1), permits (but does not mandate)
exclusion of a person who has been convicted of a misdemeanor “relating to fraud, theft,
embezz}emént,- breach of ﬁduc_iary responsibility, or other ﬁnanciai _misconduct.” '
| Sect}on (b)(3), 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7(b)(3), pgrﬁlité (but does not mandate) exclusion of a
person who has been convicted of a misdemeanor “reiating to the unlawful manufz;lcture,
distribution, prescription or dispensing of a controlled substance.” These two
provisions - Section (b)(1) and Section (b)(3) —are the only statutory authority on which
the 1G relies to exclude the plaintitts.

28.  Under 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7a(a)(6), an organjzatioh that ﬁﬁnishes items or
:services.to federal health care program beneficiaries may be liable for civil moﬁetary .
penalties and permissive exclusion if it were to place (or kéep) an excluded individuaI
' Witilin the organization and, under 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7a(a)(8), ﬁodd also be subject to

permissive exclusion if it were to place {or keep) an excluded individual as an officer,
rdireCtor, agent, or managing employee of the organization. As enforced by the IG, the
prohibitions-that accompany exélusion virtually preclude plaintiffsrﬁ*om gainful .
empioﬁnent ina pharmaéeutical or heal:th cafe éompany that rﬁarkets prodﬁcts in the
United States so long as thei% exclusion rcmalzns in place. "

29. The record establishes that Mr. Friedman has spent the greater part of his

career as a pharmaceutical cdmpény eﬁeé_utive. And after a career in the pharmaceutical

industry, Mx. Udell has been forced to relinquish his role as Vice President and Chief
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Legal Officer of Purdue Pharma and Purdue P_‘réderick; he now s;erves only in a
consultant capacity.

Review of the Exclusions

30 Immediately after receiving Notices of their exclusion, plaintiffs filed a
complaint and motion for injunctive relief in District Court, seeking'fo‘ enjoin. ﬂ;eir
éxciusions by the IG pending the outcome of administrative review within HHS and
judicial review. Friedman et al v. Leavitt, 1:08-cv-00586 (D;D.C. 2008). The Court
granted preliminary injunctive relief against enforcement or publication of the exclusions,
but on December 5, 2008, the Court ruled that it lacked subject matter jurisdiction to
provide any remedy until plaintiffs exhausted their administrative appeals within HHS.

31, Plaintiffs pursued their adininistrative appeals through proceedings before
an Administrative Law Judge and ultimately fo the Departmental Appeals Board
(“DAB”). In the course of pursuing their administrative appeals, plaintiffs contested the
fact and length of their exclusion on the grounds summarized herein, On August 31,
2009, the DAB issued its decision upholding the plairﬁiffs’ exclusions and imposing a
tv;/elvé—yeaf exclusion beriod. The.DAB decision is HHS’s final ordef in the matter. No
further édministraﬁve review is available. | |

COUNT I (Against Both Defendants)
Summary Exclusion was Not Authorized by Statute

Paragraphs 1-31 are incorporated by reference herein.
32.  The APA prohibits defendants from enforcing the Social Security Act in a

manner that is-contrary to law or arbitrary and capricious. 5 U.S.C. § 706, The Social

10
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Security Act specifies certain limited circumstances in which the Secretary may exclude
individuals from participation in federal health care programs.
= 33; Defendaﬁts have'(_ﬂxcluded plaintiffs from federal health care programs

under Séctions 1128(b)(1) and 1128(b)(3) of the Social Security Act, codified as 42
U.8.C. § 1320a-7(b)(1) and 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7(b)(3), respecﬁvely, based on the record
of plaintiffs’ plea to the strict liability misdémeanor offense under Sections 331(a) and
333(a)(1) of the FDCA. - |

34, Based on the record ir; thm case, plaintiffg; strict Hability misdemeanor
convictions are.not excludable offenses as described in Section (b)(1)’s authority to
exclude persons whose convictions “relate[e] to fraud, thefl, embezzlement, breach of
ﬁ&uciary responsibility, or financial misconduet,” nor are they excludable based on
Sécﬁén (Bj( 3)’s authority to-exclude peré‘.oné whose convictions “relat[e] to the unlawful
manufacture, distribution, dispensing or prescription of a contrélled substance.”

35.  Defendants have exceeded their statutory authority, in violation of the
APA and the Social Security Act, by excluding plaintiffs without statutory authority to do
s0.

30. Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law.

37. Defendants’ exclusion of ﬁlaintiffs from federal health care programs is
causing and will continue té cause substantial, imminent, and irreparable injury to
plaintiffs. |

| COUNT II (Against Both Defendants)
Exclusion Was An Abuse of Discretion and Arbifrary and Capricious -

Paragraphs 1-37 are incorporated by reference herein. -

11.
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38.  The APA prohibits defendants from enforcing the Social Security Actin a
manner that is contrary to law or arbitrary and capricious or an abuse of discretion or
unsupported by substantial evidence. 5 U.S.C. § 706. |

39.  The remedial purposes of the exclusion statute are to protect federal funds
and program beneficiaries from untrustworthy individuals and to deter health care fraud.

40. _ Plaintiffs’ strict liability FDCA misdemeanor convictié)ns were based
solely on the fabt. tﬁat they wefe “L;esponsible cbrpbré’te officers” at thle timé other Purdue
personnel engaged in misbranding. The plaintiffs’ misdemeanor conviction is not based
on évidence of their intent, their personal wrongdoing, their knowledge of wrongdoing by
others, or circumstances that should have made them aware of the misconduct of others.

41.  The remedial purpose of the exclusion statute to protect federal fl:lﬂds and
program beneficiaries from untrustworthy individuals is not furthered byﬁexc‘lusion of
‘plaintiffs.

42, thhing in the record of plainfiffs’ convictions establishes that the |
plaintiffs were untrustworthy indiﬁduals, that their participation would endanger the
integrity of federally-funded health care l};ro grams, or that they could not be entrusted
with well-being and safety of beneﬁciaﬁes. |

'43 .l The rcrﬁedial purpose of the eﬁ.(él-lisic)ﬁ sfatute ‘éovdeter health care fraud is
not furthered by exclusion of blaizltiffs. |

44, Because neither of the statutory rpur.poses would be served through
permissive exclusion of the plaintiffs, exclusion of them viﬁlate—s the APA in the ways
and for ﬂle reasons déscribed above.

45,  Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law.

12
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46.  Defendants’ implementation of its decision to exclude plaintiffs from
federal health care programs is causing and will continue (o cause substantial, imminent,
and irreparable injury to plaintiffs.

COUNT III (Against Both Defendants)
Exclusion for Twelve-Year Period Violates APA

Paragraphs 1-46 are incorporated by reference herein.

47, | The APA prohibits defendants from implementing the Social Security Act
in a manner that is contrary to law or arbitrary and capricious or an abuse of discretion or
unsupported by substantial evidence. 5 U.5.C, § 706.

48. The Secretary has acknowledged that the lawful period of exclusion is that
which will promote the two remedial purposes of the exclusion statute.. .

. 49, The remedial purposes of the exclusion statute are to proteet federé];funds

and program beneficiaries from unirustworthy individuals and to deter health care fraud,

50.  Plaintiffs’ strict liability FDCA misdemeanor convictions were based
solely on the fact that they were “restnsiblle corporate officers” at the time other Purdue
personnel engaged in misbranding. The misdemeanor offense to which plaintiffs pled
does not require proof of inteﬁt, pefsonal wrongdoing, or even knowledge of wrongdoing
By others. | |

51. | .Thé remedial f)urpose of the exclusion statute to protect federal funds and
pro grazﬁ beneficiaries from untrustworthy individuals is not furthered' by exclusion of
biaintiffs for twelve years. | “

52, Nothihg ifl the re;:or.d'of plaiﬁtiffé’ sftricf ‘liabilrity-,. no-intent misdéﬁméﬁor

convictions establishes that the plaintiffs were untrustworthy individuals, that they

- 13,
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threatened tbc integrity of federally-funded health care programs, or that they could not
Be entrusteci with Weli—being and safet? of beneficiaries. |

53;. The remedial purpose of the exclusion statutt; to deter health care fraud is
not furthered l:?y éxciusion of plaintiffs .for twelve years.

54. Becaﬁse neither of the statutory purposes would be accomp.}.is.hed through
permissive exclusion éf the plaintiffs, exclusion of these three_individuals' for t\yelve
vears violates the APA in the Wéys and for the reasons de;scribed above.

55.  The twelve-year period of exclusion also violates the APA because it is
not supported by substantial evidence and because it resulted from the Secretary’s
impermissible failure to consider significant mitigating circumstances. With respect to
tﬁeri.ength of exclﬁsions based on misdemeanor convictions, the Act. proﬁi-de-s t‘hat. “thé
period of the exclusion shall be 3 yéars, unless the Secretary determines in accordance
with published regulations that a shorter period is appropriate because of mitigating
circumstances or that a longer perioa is appropriate because of aggravating -
circumstances” 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7()3)(D). |

56. By i‘eguiation, HHS ﬁaé idenﬁﬁed the circumstances that quélify under
subsection (c)(3)}(D) as aggravating; |

57. Here, the aggravaﬁng ciréﬁrﬁétances relied upon as the basis for the t\i;/elve .
year exclusions are: tﬁat the “acté resuiting in thé conviction, or similar acts . . caused,
or réasonably could havé been expected to cause, a financial 1035 of $5,000 or mére toa
Govemmént program or to one or more other entities, or had a signiﬁéant financial

impact on program beneficiaries or other individuals,” and “the acts that resulted in the

14
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conviction, or similar acts, were committed over a period of one year or more.” 42
C.F.R. §§ 1001.201(b)(2)(1),(iD); see also 42 C.F.R. § 1001.401(c)(2)(1),(i).
58.  The “acts” at issue cannot be said to havé lasted more than one year. The
plaintiffs® pleas were based on no wrongful act on their part that can be measured against
_the one-year timeframe. Instead, the plaintiffs’ pleas were based on their senior positions
at Purdue. Although each plaintiff held his senior position at Purdue for longer than one
year, that-does not constitute an aggravating circumstance. Since plaintiffs committed no
wrongful act, the “acts” that resulted in their convictions were not “commitfed” over a
period of one year or longer. Thus, on this record, the defendants’ reliance on “wrongful
conduct lasting more than one year” as an aggravating circumstance was confrary to law,
arbitrary, cai:)riéious, an abuse of discretion, and not supported by substantial evidence.

59. The record of plaintiffs’ convictions also contains ﬁo substantial basis or
evidence to supj:;ort the second aggravating circumstance on which défendants relied —
harm to fedéral health care programs,

60. | The prosecutor stated on the record prior to sentenci:rlg that tﬁe
goverﬁment iacl(ed any evidence that would ’ena'ble the court “to idéntify or quaﬁtify the
impact [of the n1isBrandi11g] on prescribing health care providers[.j”

61.  Purdue Frederick’s counsel and the prosecutors told the District Court that
there WEL-S no evidence that the govefnment reimbursed for any inappropriate Oxy(rjonﬁnr
preséription that was influenced Ey, or resuited frém, the misbranding at issue. |

62. "fhe govérnment stated that it could not establish a causal connection
between the mi.ébranding statements and OkyContirn abuse and .diversion. The sen{encing

Judge stated that courts consistently had found that despite extensive discovery,'éivil

15
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plaintiffs have as a matter of law been gnable to show that Purdue’s actions caused their
injuries.

63. The amount of the payments made by Purdue Frederick or by Purdue
Pharma ;)vere not calculated or détermined based on any evidence of harm or financial
loss to fedéral health care programs or program beneficiaries resulting from the |
misbranding. ThCI.'.C Was no sucﬁ evidence, and the sentencing Judge declined to make
any finding that the misbranding caused any financial harm, and also declined to find that
any health care program, or any entity, or person was a victim of the misbranding.

64. On this record, the payment made by Purdue Pharma as “restitution” to
federal héalth care programs does not constitute substantial evidence that the plaintiffs’
offenses caused or resulted in ﬁnéncial harm to federal health care programs or
beneficiaries.

05. The “restitution’-’ paymenf made by Purdue and Purdue Pharma was part of
the global settiement of the investigation. That seftlement did not involve exclusion of
Purdue Pharma. At all times material to this complaint up to and including the present,
Purdue Pharma has marketed OxyCoritin.

66-. Oﬁ this record, the defendants’lreliance on financial haim to fedéral health
care proérams as an aggravatiﬁg circumstance ;Nas contrary to law, arbitrary, capricious,
an abuse of discretion, and not supported by sﬁbstanti.al evidence.

67, Defendants did not weigh Véry significant mitigaiing circumstances,
including the undisputed fact that plaintiffs el;‘gaged in none of the acts that formed the

basis for Purdue Frederick’s plea and were net even aware of them, and the undisputed

16
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fact that each of the plaintiffs have spegt much of their careers at PLlrdue fighting abuse
and diversibn of pain relievers Iiké OxyContin.

68. In ignoring these undisputed facts, defendants applied an unduly and
iﬁpermissibly 1'éstrictive regulati(;n purporting to limit Athe circumstances that qﬁalify
under 42 U.8.C. § 1320a-7(c)(3)(D) as mitigating for purposes of determining the length
of exclusions. 21 CF.R. §§ 1001.201 and 1001.401. | |

69. In determining the tweive—yéar period of exclusion imposed on the
biaintiffs‘, the defendanis unduly and impermissibly disregarded and failed to properly
weigh as mitigating circumstances certain relevant facts including:

A. That there is no evidence that the misconduct underlying Purdue
Frederick’s-misbranding plea caused financial harm to federal health care programs or
bentzﬁciaries.-_

B. That there 1s no evidence in the recdrd that plaintiffs committed
any wrongful act themselves, no evidence that they were made aware of misconduct by
others, and no evidence that the circumstances of the misbranding by other employees
were such that plaintiffs should have known of that misbranding. The sole factual basis
for plaintiffs’ misdemeanor pleas was their senior executive positions at Purdue, |

¢ Tha plaintiffs, tbgéther with Dr. Goldenheim, initiated and
impiemeﬁééd subs‘t.antie;l and meaﬁingfui prég;‘ams to encouraée appropriate prescribing
of OxyContin and other pharmaccut.icals that are controlled substances, and ihitiated’ and
imﬁiémeﬁted Valua’t;)ie programs designed to detect and minimize the abuse and di%/el'sion
of such pharmaceuticals. Plaintiffs also initiated and implemented programs that were

designed to educate and increase awareness of the risks of diversion and abuse of these
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pharmaceuticals, For example; they cooperated with law enforcement in a myriad of
programs that sought to identify those who would divert OxyContin and other pain
relievers into channels that lead to abuse. They were the first pharmaceutical company to
advocate for Prescription Monitoring Programs aimed at assisting healthcare
professionals, regulators, and law enforcement to monitor prescripﬁon patterns and detect
illegal pr_escription; and “doctor shopping.” They-developed Purdue’s Abuse and
Diversion Detéction Program, under which Purdue’s field-based employees notify the
Company’s Office of General Counsel when they encounter certain indicators of
potential abuse or diversion of OxyContin or other controlled substances. They led the
creation of a program to train law enforcement officials in the detection of abuse and
diversion; thousands have attended these prograzﬁs since thefr inception.r. Tﬂey éreated a
system for collecting and using épidenﬁblbéical data to track abuse and diversion to
enable law enforcement a.nd public health to target their resourcesA and effort whére they |
aré most neede.d. They altered the marketing of O}-qu()ntin in various ways to combat its
diversion, including discontinuing a particular dose "that was a focus ozf abuse. Théy
initiated a pro'gram: known .ﬁs RxPATROL, an online pharmacy robber data cleafinghouse
and partnered with Crime Stoppers by funding rewaréis for information leading ;EO_ the
aﬁpfehérisibn of perpetrators of pharmaqy' crﬁne, which has con_tributed to counﬂe_:ss
investigations and to date nearly 100 reported arresté.

-70. | Plaintiffs have ﬁo‘adequate .re‘nied.y a’; iéw.

71. | Defen&ants’ impliementatic.m of its decisioﬁ to exclude plaintiffs frb_m |
federal ﬂéalth care programs for twelve yéafs is causing and will continue to cause

substantial, imminent, and irreparable injury to plaintiffs.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEKF

.WHEREFORE,’ Plaintiffs respectfully pray for the following relief: |

A. A declaratory judgment

e that plaintiffs.’ exciusion was contrary to law, arbitrary and
capricious, an abuse of discretion, and unsupported by substantial

" evidence, or in the alternative,

e that pIa‘intiffs’ exclusion for 12 years was confrary to law, arbitrary
and capricious, an abuse of discretion, and unsupported by
substantial evidence;

B. Permanent injunctive relief enjoining defendants from further
implementing their exclusion of the three pldijﬁtiffs from fédéral heélth care programs and
from further publicizing that decision on the IG’s website or otherWise;

C. An order awarding plaintiffs’ costs and attorneys fees pursuant to
28 US.C. §2412; and

D. Such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

o

Hugh F. Keefe (ct05106)

~ Nicole Fournier-Gelston (ct18550)
Lynch, Traub, Keefe & Rrrante, P.C.
P.0O. Box 1612
New Haven, CT 06500- 1612
Tel: (203) 787-0275
Fax: (203) 782-0278)
hkeefe(@ltke.com
nfournier@ltke.com

Dated: October 28, 2009
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Jonathan Abram
Jonathan L. Diesenhaus
Helen R. Trilling '
HOGAN & HARTSON LLP
555 Thirteenth Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20004-1109
Tel: (202) 637-5600

~ jlabram{@hhlaw.com
jldiesenhaus@hhlaw.com
hrtrilling@hhlaw.com

Aﬁorheys Jor plaintiffs Michael Friedman
and Howard Udell
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